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1.0 APPLICATION SUMMARY

Applicant: Mike Schlechter

FLU Category: R-1

Service Area: Rural

Site Acreage: 5.4 +/-

Community 
Plan Area: East Rural  

Overlay: None

Introduction Summary:
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from the existing AR (Agricultural Rural) district to the proposed CI
(Commercial, Intensive) district with restrictions to the use, setbacks, and hours of operation to accommodate 
additional inventory and storage of equipment. The property is located on the corner of Rain Frog Land and W state 
Road 60.

Zoning: Existing Proposed
District(s) AR CI-R

Typical General Use(s) Agricultural Commercial, Intensive 

Acreage 5.41 5.41

Density/Intensity 1 DU per 5 GA/ FAR NA DU per GA: NA/ FAR 0.30

Mathematical Maximum* 1 DU per GA/ GFA: NA DU: NA / GFA: 70,697.88
*number represents a pre-development approximation 

Development Standards: Existing Proposed
District(s) AR CI-R
Lot Size / Lot Width 217,000 SqFt /150’ 20,000 SqFt / 100’ 

Setbacks/Buffering and 
Screening

50’ Front
50’ Rear
25’ Sides

30’ Front
10’ & 11’ Rear
10’ & 11’ Sides

Height 50’ 50’ 

Additional Information:

PD Variation(s) NA

Waiver(s) to the Land Development Code NA

Planning Commission Recommendation:
Consistent

Development Services Recommendation:
Approvable with restrictions 
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  

2.1 Vicinity Map 

 

Context of Surrounding Area: 
 
The subject parcel is separated from the North by W State Road 60 and to the West by Rain Frog Lane. The 
properties surrounding the parcel from the North, West, and South are all under residential uses. The property to 
the East which is owned by the applicant of the subject parcel is under the use of sales, rental and service of new or 
used farm, garden and turf equipment.  
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  

2.2 Future Land Use Map 

 

 

Subject Site Future Land Use Category: R-1 

Maximum Density/F.A.R.: 1 per 5 acres / 0.25 

Typical Uses: 

Farms, ranches, residual uses, rural scale neighborhood commercial uses, 
offices, and multi-purpose projects. Commercial, office, and multi-purpose 
uses shall meet locational criteria for specific land use projects. 
 
Agricultural uses may be permitted pursuant to policies in the agricultural 
objective areas of the Future Land Use Element. 
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.3 Immediate Area Map

Adjacent Zonings and Uses

Location: Zoning:

Maximum 
Density/F.A.R. 

Permitted by Zoning 
District:

Allowable Use: Existing Use:

North AS-1 1/NA Agriculture, Single Family SINGLE FAMILY R

South AR 1/NA Agriculture, Single Family SINGLE FAMILY R, 8700 
STATE

East CI, AR NA/0.30, 1/NA
Accessory Retail, 

Automotive Supply Store, 
Agriculture, Single Family

AUTO SALES C, VACANT 
RESIDENTIAL 

West AR 1/NA Agriculture, Single Family SINGLE FAMILY R, MH
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  
2.4 Proposed Site Plan (partial provided below for size and orientation purposes. See Section 8.0 for full site plan)  

N/A 
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3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9.0 OF STAFF REPORT)  

Adjoining Roadways (check if applicable) 
Road Name Classification Current Conditions Select Future Improvements 

 County Arterial 
- Urban 

2 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other   

 County Arterial 
- Urban 

8 Lanes 
 Substandard Road 
 Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan 
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other 

Rain Frog Lane County Local - 
Rural 

3 Lanes 
 Substandard Road 
 Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan 
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other 

SR 60 FDOT Arterial - 
Rural 

4 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan  
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other 

Project Trip Generation 
 Average Annual Daily Trips A.M. Peak Hour Trips P.M. Peak Hour Trips 
Existing    
Proposed    
Difference (+/1)    
*Trips reported are based on net new external trips unless otherwise noted. 
 
Connectivity and Cross Access 

Project Boundary Primary Access Additional 
Connectivity/Access Cross Access Finding 

North SR 60 Vehicular None Meets LDC 
South  Vehicular & Pedestrian Pedestrian Does Not Meet LDC 
East  None Vehicular Does Not Meet LDC 
West Rain Frog Lane Vehicular & Pedestrian Vehicular & Pedestrian Meets LDC 
Notes: 
 
Design Exception/Administrative Variance 
Road Name/Nature of Request Type Finding 
 Administrative Variance Requested Approvable 
 Design Exception Requested Previously Approved 
Notes: 
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4.0 ADDITIONAL SITE INFORMATION & AGENCY COMMENTS SUMMARY  

INFORMATION/REVIEWING AGENCY  
 

   
 

Environmental: Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 

Environmental Protection Commission   Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No  

 Yes 
 No 

 

Natural Resources  Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 

Conservation & Environ. Lands Mgmt.  Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 

Check if Applicable: 
 Wetlands/Other Surface Waters         
 Use of Environmentally Sensitive Land 

Credit        
 Wellhead Protection Area                       
 Surface Water Resource Protection Area  

 Potable Water Wellfield Protection Area 
 Significant Wildlife Habitat  
 Coastal High Hazard Area 
 Urban/Suburban/Rural Scenic Corridor 
 Adjacent to ELAPP property 
 Other _________________________ 

Public Facilities:  Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Transportation 

 Design Exc./Adm. Variance Requested  
 Off-site Improvements Provided   

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 

Service Area/ Water & Wastewater 
Urban       City of Tampa  
Rural        City of Temple Terrace  

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 

Hillsborough County School Board  
Adequate     K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A 
Inadequate  K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

NA 

Impact/Mobility Fees 

Comprehensive Plan:  Comments 
Received Findings Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Planning Commission  

 Meets Locational Criteria       N/A 
 Locational Criteria Waiver Requested 
 Minimum Density Met            N/A 
Density Bonus Requested 
Consistent               Inconsistent  

 Yes 
 No 

 Inconsistent 
 Consistent 

 Yes 
 No 
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5.0 IMPLEMENTATION RECOMMENDATIONS   
5.1 Compatibility  
The immediate adjacent properties are zoned AR to the south, west, east, and AS -1 to the north separated by W State 
Road 60. From the west the parcel is separated from residential parcels by Rain Frog Road. As the road is less than 50 
feet in width a required 20-foot buffer with type B screening is required in accordance with LDC Sec. 6.06.06. The 
northern most adjacent parcel to the east of the subject parcel is zoned CI, owned by the applicant with the use of 
sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf equipment. Furthermore, the site is bordered by a 
mixture of residential uses. To mitigate compatibility issues with the residential properties the applicant has proposed 
restrictions on the use, setbacks, and hours of operation. Additionally, the subject site is surrounded by R – 1, AR, and 
OC-20 Future Land Use (FLU) categories which permits residential, community & neighborhood commercial, office, 
farms, ranches, and multi-purpose uses. 
 
5.2 Recommendation      
Based on the above considerations and proposed restrictions, staff finds the proposed CI zoning district is compatible 
with the existing zoning districts and development pattern in the area. Therefore, staff finds the request Approvable. 
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6.0 PROPOSED RESTRICTIONS  
1. Hours of operation for the subject parcel will be limited to: Monday thru Friday from 8 am to 5 pm and 

Saturday from 8 am to 12 pm.  The business will be closed on Sundays 
2. The proposed building will be placed along the eastern side of the property with a minimum of 140-foot 

distance from the residential properties west of Rain Frog Lane. 
3. Use shall be restricted to “sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf equipment” 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Zoning Administrator Sign Off:  

J. Brian Grady
Fri Sep 29 2023 12:51:45  

SITE, SUBDIVISION AND BUILDING CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
& BUILDING REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  
Approval of this re-zoning petition by Hillsborough County does not constitute a guarantee that the project will receive 
approvals/permits necessary for site development as proposed will be issued, nor does it imply that other required permits needed 
for site development or building construction are being waived or otherwise approved.  The project will be required to comply 
with the Site Development Plan Review approval process in addition to obtain all necessary building permits for on-site structures.  
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7.0 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND/OR GRAPHICS 

N/A 
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8.0 PROPOSED SITE PLAN (FULL) 

N/A 
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9.0 FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT (see following pages) 
 
 































Unincorporated Hillsborough County Rezoning 

Hearing Date: 
September 18, 2023

Report Prepared:
September 6, 2023

Petition: RZ 23-0552

2903 West State Road 60

Southeast Corner of West State Road 60 and Rain 
Frog Lane

Summary Data:

Comprehensive Plan Finding CONSISTENT

Adopted Future Land Use Residential-1 (1 du/ga; 0.25 FAR)

Service Area Rural Area

Community Plan N/A

Request Rezoning from Agricultural Rural (AR) to 
Commercial Intensive (CI) to allow for the sales, 
rental, and service of new or used farm, garden,
and turf related equipment.

Parcel Size 5.45 ± acres (237,402 sq. ft.)

Street Functional
Classification   

West State Road 60 - State Principal Arterial
Rain Frog Lane - Local
Haynesworth Drive – Local

Locational Criteria Does not meet; waiver request submitted.

Evacuation Zone None

Plan Hillsborough
planhillsborough.org

planner@plancom.org
813 – 272 – 5940

601 E Kennedy Blvd
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602
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Context  

 The 5.45 ± acre subject property is located on the southeast corner of West State Road 
60 and Rain Frog Lane. 

 The site is located within the Rural Area and is not located within the limits of a community 
plan. 

 The subject property is located within the Residential-1 (RES-1) Future Land Use 
category, which can be considered for a maximum density of up to 1 dwelling unit per 
gross acre and a maximum consideration of up to 0.25 Floor Area Ratio (FAR. The RES-
1 Future Land Use category designates areas for rural residential uses. Typical uses 
within RES-1 include but are not limited to, farms, ranches, residential uses, rural scale 
neighborhood commercial uses, offices, and multi-purpose projects. Commercial, office, 
and multi-purpose uses shall meet locational criteria for specific land use projects.  
 

 The subject site has a Future Land Use category designation of Residential-1 (RES-1). 
The area directly west and north of the property is also designated as RES-1. Directly 
east, there are the Office Commercal-20 (OC-20) and Agricultural/Rural-1/5 (AR-1/5) 
Future Land Use categories. To the south, there is Public/Quasi Public (P/QP). Further 
southeast is Agricultural/Mining-1/20 (AM-1/20).  

 The subject site is currently vacant. To the east there are additional vacant uses 
accompanied by heavy commercial uses.  The areas directly west of the site have a single-
family residential land use designation, there is additional single family residential and 
vacant uses north past West State Road 60. South of the subject site are public/quasi-
public institutional uses.  

 The site is currently zoned as Agricultural Rural (AR). The AR zoning district extends to 
the east, south, and west. Also to the east of the subject site is Commercial Intensive (CI) 
zoning. North of the site is Agricultural, Single-Family-1 (AS-1). 

 The applicant is requesting a rezoning of Agricultural Rural (AR) to Commercial Intensive 
(CI) to allow for the sales, rental, and service of new or used farm, garden, and turf related 
equipment. 

Compliance with Comprehensive Plan: 
The following Goals, Objectives, and Policies apply to this rezoning request and are used as a 
basis for a consistency finding. 
 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 
 
Rural Area  
 
Rural areas will typically carry land use densities of 1 du/5 ga or lesser intense designations. The 
One Water Chapter outlines relevant language related to water, wastewater and septic in the 
Rural Area. Within the rural area there are existing developments that are characterized as 
suburban enclaves or rural communities. These are residential developments which have a more 
dense development pattern and character, usually 1 or 2 du/ga. These enclaves are recognized 
through the placement of land use categories that permit densities higher than 1 du/5 acres. New 
development of a character similar to the established community will be permitted to infill in a 
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limited manner, but not be permitted to expand into areas designated with lower land use 
densities. Rural communities, such as Lutz, Keystone and Thonotosassa will specifically be 
addressed through community-based planning efforts. These communities, and others like them, 
have historically served as centers for community activities within the rural environment.  
 
Objective 4: The Rural Area will provide areas for long term, agricultural uses and large lot, low 
density rural residential uses which can exist without the threat of urban or suburban 
encroachment, with the goal that no more than 20% of all population growth within the County will 
occur in the Rural Area. 
 
Policy 4.1: Rural Area Densities Within rural areas, densities shown on the Future Land Use Map 
will be no higher than 1 du/5 ga unless located within an area identified with a higher density land 
use category on the Future Land Use Map as a suburban enclave, planned village, a Planned 
Development pursuant to the PEC ½ category, or rural community which will carry higher 
densities. 
 
Relationship To Land Development Regulations 
 
Objective 9: All existing and future land development regulations shall be made consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, and all development approvals shall be consistent with those 
development regulations as per the timeframe provided for within Chapter 163, Florida Statutes. 
Whenever feasible and consistent with Comprehensive Plan policies, land development 
regulations shall be designed to provide flexible, alternative solutions to problems.  
 
Policy 9.1: Each land use plan category shall have a set of zoning districts that may be permitted 
within that land use plan category, and development shall not be approved for zoning that is 
inconsistent with the plan. 
 
Policy 9.2: Developments must meet or exceed the requirements of all land development 
regulations as established and adopted by Hillsborough County, the state of Florida and the 
federal government unless such requirements have been previously waived by those 
governmental bodies.  
 
 
Neighborhood/Community Development 

 
Objective 16:  Neighborhood Protection The neighborhood is a functional unit of community 
development.  There is a need to protect existing neighborhoods and communities and those that 
will emerge in the future. To preserve, protect and enhance neighborhoods and communities, all 
new development must conform to the following policies. 
 
Policy 16.1: Established and planned neighborhoods and communities shall be protected by 
restricting incompatible land uses through mechanisms such as: a) locational criteria for the 
placement of non-residential uses as identified in this Plan, b) limiting commercial development 
in residential land use categories to neighborhood scale; c) requiring buffer areas and screening 
devices between unlike land uses. 
 
Policy 16.2: Gradual transitions of intensities between different land uses shall be provided for 
as new development is proposed and approved, through the use of professional site planning, 
buffering and screening techniques and control of specific land uses. 
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Policy 16.3: Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses 
through: 

a) the creation of like uses; or 
b) creation of complementary uses; or 
c) mitigation of adverse impacts; and 
d) transportation/pedestrian connections 

 
Policy 16.5: Development of higher intensity non-residential land uses that are adjacent to 
established neighborhoods shall be restricted to collectors and arterials and to locations external 
to established and developing neighborhoods. 
 
Neighborhood and Community Serving Uses 
 
Objective 17: Certain non-residential land uses, including but not limited to residential support 
uses and public facilities, shall be allowed within residential neighborhoods to directly serve the 
population. These uses shall be located and designed in a manner to be compatible to the 
surrounding residential development pattern. 
 
Commercial Locational Criteria 
 
Objective 22: To avoid strip commercial development, locational criteria for neighborhood serving 
commercial uses shall be implemented to scale new commercial development consistent with the 
character of the areas and to the availability of public facilities and the market.  
 
Policy 22.1: The locational criteria for neighborhood serving non-residential uses in specified land 
uses categories will: 
 

 • provide a means of ensuring appropriate neighborhood serving commercial 
development without requiring that all neighborhood commercial sites be designated on 
the Future Land Use Map;  
 • establish a maximum square footage for each proposed neighborhood serving 
commercial intersection node to ensure that the scale of neighborhood serving 
commercial development defined as convenience, neighborhood, and general types of 
commercial uses, is generally consistent with surrounding residential character; and  
 • establish maximum frontages for neighborhood serving commercial uses at 
intersections ensuring that adequate access exists or can be provided. 

 
Policy 22.2: The maximum amount of neighborhood-serving commercial uses permitted in an 
area shall be consistent with the locational criteria outlined in the table and diagram below. The 
table identifies the intersection nodes that may be considered for non-residential uses. The 
locational criteria is based on the land use category of the property and the classification of the 
intersection of roadways as shown on the adopted Highway Cost Affordable Long Range 
Transportation Plan. The maximums stated in the table/diagram may not always be achieved, 
subject to FAR limitations and short-range roadway improvements as well as other factors such 
as land use compatibility and environmental features of the site. In the review of development 
applications consideration shall also be given to the present and short-range configuration of the 
roadways involved. The five-year transportation Capital Improvement Program, MPO 
Transportation Improvement Program or Long Range Transportation Needs Plan shall be used 
as a guide to phase the development to coincide with the ultimate roadway size as shown on the 
adopted Long Range Transportation Plan. 
 



RZ 23-0552 5 
 

Policy 22.7: Neighborhood commercial activities that serve the daily needs of residents in areas 
designated for residential development in the Future Land Use Element shall be considered 
provided that these activities are compatible with surrounding existing and planned residential 
development and are developed in accordance with applicable development regulations, 
including phasing to coincide with long range transportation improvements. The locational criteria 
outlined in Policy 22.2 are not the only factors to be considered for approval of a neighborhood 
commercial or office use in a proposed activity center. Considerations involving land use 
compatibility, adequacy and availability of public services, environmental impacts, adopted 
service levels of effected roadways and other policies of the Comprehensive Plan and zoning 
regulations would carry more weight than the locational criteria in the approval of the potential 
neighborhood commercial use in an activity center. The locational criteria would only designate 
locations that could be considered, and they in no way guarantee the approval of a particular 
neighborhood commercial or office use in a possible activity center.  
 
Policy 22.8: The Board of County Commissioners may grant a waiver to the intersection criteria 
for the location of commercial uses outlined in Policy 22.2. The waiver would be based on the 
compatibility of the use with the surrounding area and would require a recommendation by the 
Planning Commission staff. Unique circumstances and specific findings should be identified by 
the staff or the Board of County Commissioners which would support granting a waiver to this 
section of the Plan. The Board of County Commissioners may reverse or affirm the Planning 
Commission staff's recommendation through their normal review of rezoning petitions. The waiver 
can only be related to the location of the neighborhood serving commercial or agriculturally 
oriented community serving commercial zoning or development. The square footage requirement 
of the plan cannot be waived. 
 
Agriculture-Retention  
 
Objective 30: Recognizing that the continued existence of agricultural activities is beneficial, the 
county will develop, in coordination with appropriate entities, economic incentives to encourage 
and expand agricultural activities. 
 
Policy 30.5: Agriculture related commercial uses more intensive or heavy than neighborhood 
serving commercial, may be considered in the rural land use categories, provided it meets 
applicable policies of the comprehensive plan. These uses are not subject to the locational criteria 
for neighborhood serving commercial uses. 
 
4.1 RURAL RESIDENTIAL CHARACTER  
 
Goal 7: Preserve existing rural uses as viable residential alternatives to urban and suburban 
areas. 
 
Objective 7-1: Support existing agricultural uses for their importance as a historical component 
of the community, their economic importance to the County and for the open space they provide.  
 
4.3 COMMERCIAL CHARACTER 
 
Goal 9: Evaluate the creation of commercial design standards in a scale and design that 
complements the character of the community.  
 
Community Design Component 
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5.0 NEIGHBORHOOD LEVEL DESIGN  
5.1  COMPATIBILITY  
 
GOAL 12:  Design neighborhoods which are related to the predominant character of the 
surroundings. 
 
OBJECTIVE 12-1: New developments should recognize the existing community and be designed 
in a way that is compatible (as defined in FLUE policy 1.4) with the established character of the 
surrounding neighborhood. 
 
Staff Analysis of Goals, Objectives, and Policies: 
The 5.45 ± acre subject property is located on the southeast corner of West State Road 60 
and Rain Frog Lane. The site is located within the Rural Area and is not located within the 
limits of a Community Plan. The subject site’s Future Land Use category on the Future 
Land Use Map (FLUM) is Residential-1 (RES-1). The applicant is requesting a rezoning from 
Agricultural Rural (AR) to Commercial intensive (CI) to allow for the sales, rental, and 
service of new or used farm, garden, and turf related equipment. 

The Future Land Use Element permits new development within the Rural Area that is 
similar in character to the existing community. Objective 4 of the Future Land Use Element 
(FLUE) of the Comprehensive Plan notes that 20% of the growth in the region will occur 
within the Rural Service Area without the threat of urban or suburban encroachment. FLUE 
Policy 4.1 characterizes the Rural Area as low-density, large lot residential. The subject 
site is within the Rural Area and the proposed rezoning of the parcel from AR to CI is 
similar in character to the surrounding area as there is existing CI zoning to the east of the 
subject site.  

The applicant is the owner of the adjacent property to the subject site, which is a John 
Deere dealership. The intention of the rezoning is to rezone the subject site for commercial 
uses that are similar to those already in use adjacent to the site. Objective 9 of the FLUE 
states that all existing and future land development regulations shall be made consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan. Policies 9.1 and 9.2 allow for approving zoning that is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and developments that meet the regulations 
established by Hillsborough County.  

FLUE Objective 16 emphasizes the need for new developments to preserve, protect, and 
enhance existing neighborhoods and communities. Policy 16.1 restricts incompatible land 
uses through mechanisms such as locational criteria for non-residential uses and limiting 
development in residential land use categories to neighborhood scale. This Policy also 
requires buffer areas between unlike land uses. Policy 16.5 addresses the restriction of 
higher intensity non-residential land uses adjacent to established neighborhoods, to 
collectors and arterials, and to locations external to established and developing 
neighborhoods. The subject site is situated directly adjacent to single-family residential 
uses, and is located on West State Road 60, an arterial roadway. Objective 17 of the FLUE 
allows for certain non-residential land uses to be located and designed in a manner that is 
compatible to the surrounding residential development pattern. The proposed rezoning 
reflects a development pattern that is consistent with the surrounding area.  

FLUE Objective 22 establishes Commercial Locational Criteria (CLC) for neighborhood 
serving commercial uses. Policy 22.1 states that non-residential uses provide a means to 
ensure appropriate neighborhood serving commercial development be consistent with the 
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surrounding residential character. It also emphasizes the need for a maximum square 
footage for each proposed neighborhood serving commercial intersection node to ensure 
that the scale of neighborhood serving commercial development, defined as convenience, 
neighborhood, and general types of commercial uses, is consistent with the surrounding 
residential uses. Policy 22.2 asserts that the maximum amount of neighborhood serving 
commercial uses permitted in an area shall be consistent with the locational criteria 
outlined in the table and diagram located in the FLUE. Policy 22.7 states that neighborhood 
commercial activities that serve the daily needs of residents in areas designated for 
residential development must be compatible with surrounding existing development. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with this policy direction. The subject site is in the RES-
1 FLU category and it does not meet locational criteria. It is located nearly 1900 feet from 
the nearest qualifying intersection node of West State Road 60 and Mud Lake Road and 
therefore does not meet Commercial Locational Criteria (CLC). Therefore, per FLUE Policy 
22.8, the applicant is required to submit a waiver request. 
 
The applicant submitted a waiver request into Optix on July 28, 2023. The applicant states 
that the proposed use is neighborhood-serving. FLUE Objective 30 states that the county 
will recognize the continued existence of agricultural activities as beneficial and will 
encourage and expand agricultural activities in coordination with appropriate entities. 
Policy 30.5 argues that agricultural related commercial activities uses may be more 
intensive than traditional neighborhood serving commercial uses. Thus, proposed uses 
may be considered in the rural area as long as they meet applicable policies of the 
comprehensive plan. Agricultural related commercial uses within the rural area are not 
subject to the locational criteria for neighborhood serving commercial uses. Therefore, a 
CLC waiver request was not needed. Planning Commission staff’s main concern with the 
proposed rezoning was compatibility as it may be too intense to be adjacent to existing 
single-family residential uses. However, after various discussions with County staff, the 
applicant submitted a Conditions of Approval (COA) into Optix on September 1, 2023, in 
which the applicant agreed to limited hours of operation. The proposed site would be open 
Monday thru Friday from 8 am to 5 pm, and on Saturdays from 8 am to 12 pm. The business 
will be closed on Sundays. The applicant also agreed to restrict the proposed use to solely 
“sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf equipment”. Planning 
Commission staff believes that the applicant has sufficiently addressed our concerns.   
 
Overall, the proposed rezoning would allow for development that is consistent with the 
Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the Unincorporated Hillsborough County 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Recommendation 
Based upon the above considerations, the Planning Commission staff finds the proposed 
rezoning CONSISTENT with the Unincorporated Hillsborough County Comprehensive Plan. 
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AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO: ZONING TECHNICIAN, Development Services Department DATE: 9/07/2023 
 

REVIEWER: Richard Perez, AICP AGENCY/DEPT: Transportation 

PLANNING AREA/SECTOR:  EAST RURAL PETITION NO: RZ 23-0552 
 

 

 

X  This agency has no objection. 
 
  This agency objects for the reasons set forth below. 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the +/- 4.45-acre subject parcel from Agricultural Rural (AR) to Commercial 
Intensive (CI) with the use restricted to “sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf 
equipment”.  The applicant is proposing additional restrictions on hours of operation and building placement. The 
future land use designation is Residential 1 (R-1).  
 
Since the proposed applicant seeks a Euclidean zoning district, no transportation analysis is required to process 
this request per the development review procedures manual. 
 
 
SITE ACCESS  
 
Generally, for projects with a Euclidean zoning designation, a project’s potential transportation impacts, site access 
requirements, substandard road issues, site layout and design, other issues related to project access, and compliance 
with other applicable Hillsborough County Comprehensive Plan, Hillsborough County Land Development Code 
(LDC) and Hillsborough County Transportation Technical Manual (TTM) requirements are evaluated at the time 
of plat/site/construction plan review.  Given the limited information available as is typical of all Euclidean zoned 
properties and/or non-regulatory nature of any conceptual plans provided, Transportation Review Section staff did 
review the proposed rezoning to determine (to the best of our ability) whether the zoning is generally consistent 
with applicable policies of the Hillsborough County Comprehensive Plan, LDC and TTM (e.g. to ensure that the 
proposed rezoning would not result in a violation of the requirement whereby access to commercial properties 
cannot be taken through residentially or agriculturally zoned properties), and/or whether, in staff’s opinion, some 
reasonable level of development under the proposed zoning designation could be supported based on current access 
management standards (e.g. to ensure that a project was not seeking an intensification of a parcel which cannot 
meet minimum access spacing requirements).   
 
Transportation Section staff did not identify any concerns that would require a more detailed staff report be filed.  
Staff notes that, regardless of this review, the developer/property owner will be required to comply will all 
Comprehensive Plan, LDC, TTM and other applicable rules and regulations at the time of plat/site/construction 
plan review.  As such, staff has no objection to this request. 
 
Staff notes that any plans or graphics presented as a part of a Euclidean zoning case is non-binding and will have 
no regulatory value at the time of plat/site/construction plan review. 
 
 
 
 

  This agency has no comments. 



 
 
ROADWAY LEVEL OF SERVICE (LOS) INFORMATION 
 
Level of Service (LOS) information is reported below. 
 

FDOT Generalized Level of Service 

Roadway From To LOS 
Standard 

Peak Hr 
Directional LOS  

SR 60 TURKEY 
CREEK RD  CR 39 D C 

Source: 2020 Hillsborough County Level of Service (LOS) Report 

 



Transportation Comment Sheet  
 

 

 

3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9 OF STAFF REPORT)  
Adjoining Roadways (check if applicable) 
Road Name Classification Current Conditions Select Future Improvements 

SR 60 FDOT Principal 
Arterial - Rural 

4 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other   

Project Trip Generation  Not applicable for this request 
 Average Annual Daily Trips A.M. Peak Hour Trips P.M. Peak Hour Trips 
Existing 9 1 1 
Proposed 420 42 42 
Difference (+/-) +411 +41 +41 
*Trips reported are based on net new external trips unless otherwise noted.  
 
Connectivity and Cross Access  Not applicable for this request 

Project Boundary Primary Access Additional 
Connectivity/Access Cross Access Finding 

North  None None Meets LDC 
South  None None Meets LDC 
East  None None Meets LDC 
West  None None Meets LDC 
Notes:  
 
Design Exception/Administrative Variance   Not applicable for this request 
Road Name/Nature of Request Type Finding 
N/A Choose an item. Choose an item. 
 Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 

4.0 Additional Site Information & Agency Comments Summary  

Transportation Objections Conditions 
Requested 

Additional 
Information/Comments 

 Design Exception/Adm. Variance Requested 
 Off-Site Improvements Provided 

 Yes  N/A 
 No 

 Yes 
 No See report. 
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August 8th, 2023 

Vacant Commercial Development Pre App Meeting  
2903 W SR 60, Plant City  
SR 60 
10 110 000 
MP 17.504  
Class 3 @ 60 MPH 
Connection/signal spacing – 660’/2640’ 
Directional/full median opening spacing – 1320’/2640’ 
Folio # 093093-0352 

RE: Pre-Application Meeting  

THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT A PERMIT APPROVAL 

THE COMMENTS AND FINDINGS FROM THIS PRE-APPLICATION MEETING MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AND 
MAY NOT BE USED AS A BASIS OF APPROVAL AFTER 2/8/2024 

Attendees: 
Guests: Matt Morris, Linda Stewart

FDOT: Mecale’ Roth, Allison Carroll, William Gregory, Nancy Porter, Genesis 
Zambrano, Leanna Schaill, Caroline Cation-Smith, Lindsey Mineer, Antonius Lebrun, 
and Ahmad Chehab 

Proposed Conditions: 

The applicant proposes to use the vacant parcel to expand storage facilities for the adjoining 
agricultural equipment business, and proposes to utilize the same driveway to the facility. 

The project also proposes to modify the existing median opening to SR 60, a class 3 roadway 
with a posted speed limit of 60 MPH. Florida Administrative Code, Rule Chapter 14-97, 
requires 660’ driveway spacing, 1320’ directional, 2640’ full median opening spacing, and 
2640’ signal spacing requirements. 
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FDOT Recommendations: 

1. The proposed access connection to the state roadway does not meet spacing 
standards and would be considered non-conforming.  Since the eastern adjacent 
property, under contiguous ownership, has access that can be used via internal 
connectivity, the proposed additional access to SR 60 will not be permitted.  

2. As the proposed changes in land use constitute “Significant Change”, the Department 
will require the provision of an access permit to document the changes to the vacant 
parcel.  

3. Please provide pre and post site plans, existing and proposed trip generations, and 
narrative explaining the proposed scope of work.   

4. Please clarify if the vacant parcel portion of the property will be fenced in the proposed 
conditions.  

5. If the County was amenable, and proper upgrades were done, access could be taken 
via Rain Frog Lane. 

6. Any proposed improvements to Rain Frog Lane will be required to be submitted to the 
Department for review.  

a. Hillsborough County would need to apply for a permit for the upgraded changes 
to Rain Frog Lane where it connects to SR 60. 

7. As the existing median openings do not meet the minimum spacing standards per 
Florida Administrative Code 14-97 the Department will not permit the full median 
opening to remain. Impacts to the existing full median will require the development to 
bring the median into compliance with current standards.  

a. This would be done under a separate construction agreement permit. 
8. The provision of pedestrian facilities will be required in the event the additional parcel 

is not fenced in. 
9. Proposing to keep the existing drainage pattern that drains away from the state ROW, 

a. This would be done under a drainage exemption. 
10. Show drainage outfall on plans. 
11. Provide existing and proposed drainage maps. 
12. Please note there are existing FDOT Projects in design for this section of SR 60. 

Please reach out to the FDOT Project Manager directly to obtain the most recent 
information on these projects.  

a. FPID 446051-1 Michael Ojo, Michael.Ojo@dot.state.fl.us,  813-975-6266 
b. FPID 435750-2 Kevin Lee, Kevin.Lee@dot.state.fl.us, 813-975-6426 

13. If a utility permit is needed, please refer to the Utility Accommodation Manual (UAM) or 
contact William Gregory at william.gregory@dot.state.fl.us or 813-612-3200. 
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14. Contact Leanna Schaill or Tammer Al-Turk for any traffic or access related questions 
at leanna.schaill@dot.state.fl.us, tammer.alturk@dot.state.fl.us, or at 813-975-6000. 

15. Contact Nancy Porter or Mecale’ (makayla) Roth for permit, pre app, or general 
questions at nancy.porter@dot.state.fl.us, mecale.roth@dot.state.fl.us, or 813-612-
3200.  

Summary:  

After reviewing and discussing the information presented in this meeting, the Department has 
determined we are 

 in favor (considering the conditions stated above) 
 not in favor 
 willing to revisit a revised plan 

The access, as proposed in this meeting, would be considered  
 conforming 
 non-conforming 
  N/A (no access proposed) 

in accordance with the rule chapters 1996/97 for connection spacing. The following state 
permits will need to be applied for by visiting our One Stop Permitting website (osp.fdot.gov): 

 access-category A or B 
 access-category C, D, E, or F 

traffic study required 
 access safety upgrade 
 drainage  

or 
 drainage exception 
 construction agreement 
 utility 
 general Use 
 other__________________________ 

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to review and discuss this project in advance. 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions. We look forward to working with you again.  



Florida Department of Transportation 
RON DESANTIS

GOVERNOR 
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JARED W. PERDUE, P.E.
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FDOTTampaBay.com | @MyFDOT_Tampa | Facebook.com/MyFDOTTampa

Respectfully, 

NNancyy Porterr 
Permit Coordinator II 
2822 Leslie Rd.  
Tampa, Fl. 33619 
Office - 813-612-3205  
M-F 7:30 AM – 4:00 PM 
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Additional Comments/Standard Information: 
(These comments may or may not apply to this project, they are standard comments) 

1. Document titles need to reflect what the document is before it is uploaded into OSP, 
and please do not upload unnecessary documents. 

2. Documents need to be signed and sealed or notarized. 
3. Include these notes with the application submittal. 
4. Permits that fall within the limit of a FDOT project must contact project manager, 

provide a work schedule, and coordinate construction activities prior to permit approval. 
Ask Mecale’ for information if not provided in the notes. 

5. Plans shall be per the current Standard Plans and FDM.
6. All the following project identification information must be on the Cover Sheet of the 

plans: 
a. all associated FDOT permit #’s 
b. state road # (& local road name) and road section ID # 
c. mile post # and left (Lt) or right (Rt) side of the roadway (when facing north or 

east) 
d. roadway classification # and posted speed limit (MPH)    

7. All typical driveway details are to be placed properly: 
a. 24” thermoplastic white stop bar equal to the lane width placed 4’ behind 

crosswalk or a minimum of 25’ in front of it 
b. 36” stop sign mounted on a 3” round post, aligned with the stop bar 
c. if applicable, a “right turn only” sign mounted below the stop sign (FTP-55R-06 

or FTP-52-06) 
d. double yellow 6” lane separation lines 
e. 6’ wide, high emphasis, ladder style crosswalk 

straddling the detectable warning mats 
f. warning mats to be red in color unless specified 

otherwise 
g. directional arrow(s) 25’ behind the stop bar 
h. all markings on concrete are to be high contrast (white 

with black border) 
i. all striping within and approaching FDOT ROW shall be thermoplastic 

8. Maintain 20’ x 20’ pedestrian sight triangles and draw the triangles on the plans to show 
there are no obstructions taller than 24” within the triangles. Also, no parking spaces 
can be in these triangles Measure 20’ up the sidewalk and 20’ up the driveway from the 
point at which the sidewalk meets the driveway.  Here is an example of what these 
triangles look like and how they are positioned. 
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9. Any relocation of utilities, utility poles, signs, or other agency owned objects must be 
coordinated with the Department and the existing and proposed location must be 
clearly labeled on the plans. Contact the Permits Department for more details and 
contact information. 

10. Make note on plans that it is the responsibility of the contractor to not only restore the 
ROW, but they are also responsible for maintaining the ROW for the duration of the 
project.  

Context Classification: 

Here is the link to find information about context classification to see what class standards the 
proposed project needs to be built to. Below is the standard table for sidewalk width for each 
class: 

https://kai.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=b5ecc163fe04491dafeb44194851ba93  
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Lighting: 

Lighting of sidewalks and/or shared paths must be to current standards (FDM section 231). 
Newly implemented FDOT Context classifications updated the required sidewalk widths 
(FDM section 222.2.1.1). Where sidewalk is being added and/or widened, the lighting will be 
analyzed to ensure sidewalks are properly lit per FDOT FDM standards. Reference the 
following link and table for details:

https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-
source/roadway/fdm/2020/2020fdm231lighting.pdf?sfvrsn=2ad35fbf_2
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AGENCY COMMENT SHEET 
 

REZONING 

HEARING DATE: July 24, 2023 

PETITION NO.: 23-0552 

EPC REVIEWER: Kelly M. Holland 

CONTACT INFORMATION: (813) 627-2600 X 1222 

EMAIL:   hollandk@epchc.org 

COMMENT DATE: July 5, 2023 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: West State Road 60 

FOLIO #: 0930930352 

STR: 30-29S-22E 

REQUESTED ZONING: Standard rezoning 
 
 

FINDINGS 
WETLANDS PRESENT YES 
SITE INSPECTION DATE NA 
WETLAND LINE VALIDITY NA 
WETLANDS VERIFICATION (AERIAL PHOTO, 
SOILS SURVEY, EPC FILES) 

Small pond in the SE corner of the property 

The EPC Wetlands Division has reviewed the proposed rezoning. In the site plan’s current 
configuration, a resubmittal is not necessary. If the zoning proposal changes and/or the site plans 
are altered, EPC staff will need to review the zoning again. This project as submitted is 
conceptually justified to move forward through the zoning review process as long as the 
following conditions are included:  

 
 Approval of this zoning petition by Hillsborough County does not constitute a guarantee that the 

Environmental Protection Commission of Hillsborough County (EPC) approvals/permits 
necessary for the development as proposed will be issued, does not itself serve to justify any 
impact to wetlands, and does not grant any implied or vested right to environmental approvals.  
 

 The construction and location of any proposed wetland impacts are not approved by this 
correspondence but shall be reviewed by EPC staff under separate application pursuant to the EPC 
Wetlands rule detailed in Chapter 1-11, Rules of the EPC, (Chapter 1-11) to determine whether 
such impacts are necessary to accomplish reasonable use of the subject property. 
 

 Prior to the issuance of any building or land alteration permits or other development, the 
approved wetland / other surface water (OSW) line must be incorporated into the site plan.  The 
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wetland/ OSW line must appear on all site plans, labeled as "EPC Wetland Line", and the wetland 
must be labeled as "Wetland Conservation Area" pursuant to the Hillsborough County Land 
Development Code (LDC). 

 
 Final design of buildings, stormwater retention areas, and ingress/egresses are subject to change 

pending formal agency jurisdictional determinations of wetland and other surface water 
boundaries and approval by the appropriate regulatory agencies. 

 
INFORMATIONAL COMMENTS: 
The following specific comments are made for informational purposes only and to provide guidance as 
to the EPC review process.  However, future EPC staff review is not limited to the following, regardless 
of the obviousness of the concern as raised by the general site plan and EPC staff may identify other 
legitimate concerns at any time prior to final project approval. 
 
 The subject property contains wetland/OSW areas, which have not been delineated. Knowledge of 

the actual extent of the wetland and OSW are necessary in order to verify the avoidance of wetland 
impacts pursuant to Chapter 1-11.  Prior to the issuance of any building or land alteration permits or 
other development, the wetlands/OSWs must be field delineated in their entirety by EPC staff or 
Southwest Florida Water Management District staff (SWFWMD) and the wetland line surveyed.  
Once delineated, surveys must be submitted for review and formal approval by EPC staff.   
 

 Chapter 1-11 prohibits wetland impacts unless they are necessary for reasonable use of the property.  
Staff of the EPC recommends that this requirement be taken into account during the earliest stages of 
site design so that wetland impacts are avoided or minimized to the greatest extent possible.  The 
size, location, and configuration of the wetlands may result in requirements to reduce or reconfigure 
the improvements depicted on the plan. If you choose to proceed with the wetland impacts depicted 
on the plan, a separate wetland impact/mitigation proposal and appropriate fees must be submitted 
to this agency for review.   
 

 The Hillsborough County Land Development Code (LDC) defines wetlands and other surface 
waters as Environmentally Sensitive Areas.  Pursuant to the LDC, wetlands and other surface waters 
are further defined as Conservation Areas or Preservation Areas and these areas must be designated 
as such on all development plans and plats.  A minimum setback must be maintained around the 
Conservation/Preservation Area and the setback line must also be shown on all future plan 
submittals. 

 
 Any activity interfering with the integrity of wetland(s) or other surface water(s), such as clearing, 

excavating, draining or filling, without written authorization from the Executive Director of the EPC 
or authorized agent, pursuant to Section 1-11.07, would be a violation of Section 17 of the 
Environmental Protection Act of Hillsborough County, Chapter 84-446, and of Chapter 1-11. 

 
kmh / app 
 
ec: Andy Jones, Property Owner – andy@efe1963.com 
 Mike Schlechter, Applicant – mschlechter@efe1963.com 
 
          
 



From: Peddle, Carolanne
To: tpopelier@morrisengineering.net
Cc: andy@efe1963.com
Subject: FW: Preliminary Comments for RZ 23-0552
Date: Friday, June 30, 2023 2:40:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Teresa,
 
Below you will find Planning Commission (PC) staff’s preliminary comments. Please be advised
that the PC staff has expressed some compatibility concerns at this time. The review of the
application is continuing, and other issues may arise that were not provided within this email.
Any additional issues identified will be provided to you as soon as possible.
 
Please feel free to contact us if you have any follow-up questions.
 
Best,
Carolanne Peddle
Planner
Development Services Department
601 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, FL 33602

O: (813) 274-6714
M: (813) 860-7932
E: peddlec@hillsboroughcounty.org
W: HCFLGov.net
 
 
 

From: Wally Gallart <gallartw@plancom.org> 
Sent: Friday, June 30, 2023 2:01 PM
To: Peddle, Carolanne <PeddleC@hillsboroughcounty.org>
Subject: Preliminary Comments for RZ 23-0552
 
 
External email: Use caution when clicking on links, opening attachments or replying to this email.
 
Good afternoon Carolanne,

 Please forward Planning Commission staff's comments to the applicant for RZ 23-0552

The 5.45 acre (237, 402 sq. ft.) subject site is located on 2903 W 60 Highway. 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from Agricultural Rural (AR) to Commercial
Intensive (CI) 
The subject site is located within the Residential-1 (RES-1) Future Land Use Category,
which has a maximum of 1 dwelling units per gross acre. Rural scale neighborhood
commercial, office multi-purpose projects limited to 30,000 sq. ft. or 0.25 FAR,



whichever is less intensive. 
The site is located in the Rural Area and is not within a community plan.
Non-residential uses shall meet locational criteria for specific land use. 
Please note that the site does not meet Commercial Locational Criteria (CLC) per Future
Land Use Objective 22, and per Policy 22.8 the applicant must submit a CLC waiver
request. 
From a preliminary perspective, Planning Commission staff does have compatibility. The
proposed change may be too intense as it abuts single-family residential uses nearby. 
Planning Commission staff believes that the proposed standard rezoning would be more
appropriate as a Plan Development. This will allow for Planning Commission staff to
ensure that the applicant is taking appropriate measures to address and mitigate
compatibility concerns.
Please be advised that since the application has been continued for the August cycle
that any additional information and revisions should be submitted by the revised plan
deadline (August 1st, 2023) in order for Planning Commission staff to have adequate
time for review. Items submitted after this date may not be reviewed and may result in
a finding of Inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan

Thanks,

Wally Gallart
Planning Commission
Planner
813.210.9310 (O) 
planhillsborough.org

All incoming and outgoing messages are subject to public records inspection.



AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO:  ZONING TECHNICIAN, Planning Growth Management DATE: 15 June 2023 

REVIEWER:   Bernard W. Kaiser, Conservation and Environmental Lands Management 
APPLICANT:   Andy Jones PETITION NO:  RZ-STD 23-0552 
LOCATION:   2903 W. 60 Hwy, Plant City, FL  33567 

FOLIO NO:   93093.0352 SEC: 30   TWN: 29   RNG: 22 
 

 

 

  This agency has no comments. 

 

  This agency has no objection. 

 

 This agency has no objection, subject to listed or attached conditions.  

 

 This agency objects, based on the listed or attached conditions. 

   

COMMENTS:        . 
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· · · · · · · · · · · HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
· · · · · · · · · · ·BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
·

· · ------------------------------X
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · IN RE:· · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ZONE HEARING MASTER· · · · · ·)
· · HEARINGS· · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ------------------------------X
·

· · · · · · · · · · ·ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
· · · · · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS
·

· · · · · · · BEFORE:· · · · SUSAN FINCH
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Land Use Hearing Master
·

· · · · · · · DATE:· · · · · Monday, September 18, 2023

· · · · · · · TIME:· · · · · Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Concluding at 10:54 p.m.
·

·

·

·

· · · · · · · · · LOCATION:· ·Hillsborough County BOCC
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 601 East Kennedy Boulevard
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Tampa, FL 33601

·

·

· · Reported by:
· · Diane DeMarsh, AAERT No. 1654
·

·

·
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·1· Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

·2· · · · · · Major Mod application 23-0518, this application is out

·3· of order to be heard and is being continued to the October 16th,

·4· 2023, Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

·5· · · · · · Item A.10, PD Rezoning 23-0519, this application is

·6· out of order to be heard and is being continued to the October

·7· 16th, 2023, Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

·8· · · · · · Item A.11, Major Mod application 23-0520, this

·9· application is being continued by staff to the October 16th,

10· 2023, Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

11· · · · · · Item A.12, PD 23-0522, this application is being

12· continued by staff to the October 16th, 2023, Zoning Hearing

13· Master hearing.

14· · · · · · Item A.13, PD application 23-0540, this application is

15· out of order to be heard and is being continued to the October

16· 16th, 2023, Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

17· · · · · · Item A.14, PD 23-0583, this application is out of

18· order to be heard and is being continued to the October 16th,

19· 2023, Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

20· · · · · · Item A.15, PD application 23-0584, this application is

21· being continued by the applicant to the October 16th, 2023,

22· Zoning Hearing Master hearing.

23· · · · · · Item A.16, Standard Rezoning 23-0588, this application

24· is being continued by staff to the October 16th, 2023, Zoning

25· Hearing Master hearing.
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·1· rear, with a strong commercial use along 41, six-lane highway?

·2· · · · · · That's why we came forward with CG because we do

·3· believe if you take all those elements into account, this is the

·4· best use for the property.· So we would ask you to consider your

·5· analysis, your determination, your narrative on compatibility

·6· issues, on the site being supportable by CG.· We think those are

·7· important comments for the Board of County Commissioners to see,

·8· and we appreciate the consideration and the staff.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you for that.· I appreciate it.

10· · · · · · And we'll close rezoning 23-0082 and go to the next

11· case.

12· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· Our next item is Item C.2, Standard

13· Rezoning 23-0552.· The applicant is requesting a rezoning from

14· A-R to CI-R.· Carolanne Peddle with Development Services will

15· provide staff findings after the applicant's presentation.

16· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· And I believe the

17· applicant is virtual; is that correct?

18· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Yes, I am.

19· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Good evening.· If you

20· could start by giving us your name and address.· And I don't

21· quite see you yet.

22· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· I'm up here in the --

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· There you are.· Go ahead.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Hi.· Sure.· Good evening, Madam Hearing

25· Officer.· My name is Linda Stewart.· I'm a planner with Morris
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·1· Engineering representing the applicant and Everglades Farm

·2· Equipment.· My office address is 6997 Professional Parkway in

·3· Sarasota, Florida.· And I have been sworn.

·4· · · · · · We are -- I have a PowerPoint that I will share with

·5· you.· Can you see that okay?

·6· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· I can.

·7· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Okay.· Case number RZ-STD 23-0552 is for

·8· the property that's located adjacent to 2903 West 60 Highway

·9· with the Folio number noted and the PIN number as well.· The

10· size of the property is 5.4 acres.· It's currently zoned

11· agricultural rural and a Future Land Use of R-1, residential

12· one.· It is in the rural service area in the East Rural

13· Community Plan area.· There are no overlays associated with this

14· parcel.

15· · · · · · The zoning of the parcel, as I noted, is currently

16· agricultural, and the request is to commercial intensive.· The

17· Future Land Use is R-1, which is compatible with the adjacent

18· properties to the west and the north.· To the east is OC-20,

19· which is parcels already owned by the Everglades Farm Equipment.

20· And farther to the west as well as to the south is public lands

21· that are owned by Southwest Florida Water Management District.

22· And to -- also to the east is a Future Land Use of A-R.

23· · · · · · The request from rezoning to C-I.· It's located in the

24· East Rural Community Plan area.· It's located in the rural

25· service area with no overlays, and we have no specific approval
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·1· requests for rezoning.· We have discussed with planning staff as

·2· well as the Planning Commission, and we agree to some use

·3· restrictions on the property for compatibility.· The use

·4· restriction will be for sales, rental, and service of new or

·5· used farm, garden, and turf equipment only.· The hours of

·6· operation will be limited Monday through Friday from 8:00 to

·7· 5:00, Saturday from 8:00 to noon, and closed on Sunday.

·8· · · · · · And any proposed buildings that are to be placed on

·9· the property will be along the eastern property line with a

10· minimum of 140 feet from the existing residential properties to

11· the west of Rain Frog Lane.· The property is going to have

12· access through the existing Everglades Farm Equipment property.

13· We did meet with FDOT and had discussions with them for access

14· out onto State Road 60, and we agreed that the access would be

15· utilized from the existing access to the property to the east.

16· State Road 60 is currently in design to be widened from

17· four-lane to six-lane.

18· · · · · · The previous use of the property was for neighborhood

19· commercial use.· It was for a berry farms and nursery.· This use

20· will be an expansion of the existing adjacent Everglades Farm

21· Equipment property located at 2805 West 60 Highway in Plant

22· City.· We believe that this is compatible with the land use and

23· the land development code, and staff has found this compatible

24· as well as Planning Commission.· And we request your approval of

25· this application and are available for any questions that you
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·1· may have.

·2· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Yes.· Just to confirm for my

·3· understanding, so as I read the backup for this, this is a --

·4· next door is an existing John Deere dealership; is that correct?

·5· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Yes, it is.

·6· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· And this property was -- is being

·7· used for the storage of equipment, and that's what necessitates

·8· the rezoning to make that a permitted use on this property; is

·9· that right?

10· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Yes, absolutely.

11· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· So was that just a -- are you

12· under code enforcement violation?· How did this come to your

13· attention?

14· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· No, it is not my understanding that they

15· are under a code enforcement violation.

16· · · · · · MS. PEDDLE:· They area.

17· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· We'll get to you.· Just a

18· second.

19· · · · · · All right.· Okay.· That was my only question.· Thank

20· you for that.· I appreciate it.

21· · · · · · We'll go to Development Services.

22· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Good evening.

24· · · · · · MS. PEDDLE:· Good evening.· Carolanne Peddle,

25· Development Services.· This is Standard Rezoning 23-0552.· The
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·1· applicant requests to rezone the property from AR to CI with

·2· restrictions.· The property has a Future Land Use designation of

·3· R-1, which permits residential densities up to one dwelling unit

·4· per acre and nonresidential intensities up to a maximum FAR of

·5· 0.25.

·6· · · · · · The surrounding subject parcels -- or, excuse me.

·7· Surrounding the subject parcels, the Future Land Use categories

·8· are R-1, QP, OC-20, and AR.· The properties in the immediate

·9· vicinity are developed for residential and auto sales.· The

10· adjacent parcel to the west abutting State Road 60 is owned by

11· the applicant in zone CI with the use of auto sales.· Based on

12· the considerations and proposed restrictions regarding hours of

13· operation, setbacks, and uses, staff finds the proposed rezoning

14· district to CI with restrictions approvable.

15· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you so much.· I appreciate it.

16· · · · · · Planning Commission.

17· · · · · · MS. MASSEY:· Jillian Massey, Planning Commission

18· staff.· The subject property is in the residential one Future

19· Land Use category.· It's in the rural area, and it is not

20· located within the limits of a community plan.· Policy 4.1

21· characterizes the rural area as low density, large lot

22· residential.· The subject site is in the rural area, and the

23· proposed rezoning of the parcel from AR to CIR is similar in

24· character to the surrounding area as there is an existing CI

25· zoning to the east of the subject site.· The intention of the
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·1· rezoning is to rezone the subject site for commercial uses that

·2· are similar to those that are already in use adjacent to the

·3· site.

·4· · · · · · Future Land Use element Objective 16 emphasizes the

·5· need for new developments to preserve, protect, and enhance

·6· existing neighborhoods and communities.· Objective 17 of the

·7· Future Land Use element allows for certain nonresidential uses

·8· to be located and designed in a manner that is compatible to the

·9· surrounding residential development pattern.· The proposed

10· rezoning reflects a development pattern that is consistent with

11· the surrounding area.· Although the subject site does not meet

12· commercial-locational criteria, Policy 22.7 states that

13· neighborhood commercial activities that serve the daily needs of

14· residents in areas designated for residential development must

15· be compatible with the surrounding existing development.· The

16· proposed rezoning is consistent with this policy direction.

17· · · · · · Agricultural related commercial uses within the rural

18· area are not subject to locational criteria for neighborhoods

19· serving commercial uses; therefore, a waiver request is not

20· required.

21· · · · · · Planning Commission staff's main concern with the

22· proposed rezoning was compatibility as it may be too intense to

23· be adjacent to existing single-family residential uses.· The

24· sales, rental, and service of new or used farm, garden, and turf

25· equipment was added as a condition of approval, and Planning
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·1· Commission staff believes that the -- or, rather, it was added

·2· as a restriction.· My apologies.· And the Planning Commission

·3· staff believes that the applicant has sufficiently addressed the

·4· compatibility concerns.· And, based on these considerations,

·5· Planning Commission staff finds that the proposed rezoning is

·6· consistent with the Unincorporated Hillsborough County

·7· Comprehensive Plan.

·8· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you so much.· I appreciate it.

·9· · · · · · Is there anyone that would like to speak in support?

10· Anyone in favor?· Anyone in support, either in the room or

11· online?· All right.· Seeing no one.

12· · · · · · Now, anyone who would like to speak in opposition,

13· raise your hand.· Let me get a count.· So I have two in the

14· room.· Is there anyone online that would like to --

15· · · · · · THE CLERK:· We have four people online.

16· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Four people online, so six.· We'll

17· do -- we'll do three minutes apiece, Michael.· Let's start with

18· the people in the room, unless you had an order in which you

19· wanted to give presentations.

20· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Can we do the young lady online because

21· she has a class to get to?

22· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Yes, absolutely.

23· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Mollie Usher.

24· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Mollie Usher, it's your

25· turn.· Good evening.
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·1· · · · · · MS. USHER:· Good evening.· My name is Mollie Usher,

·2· and my permanent residence is 5513 Rain Frog Lane, Plant City,

·3· Florida, which is adjacent to the property this meeting is

·4· about.· I am currently a first-year student at the University Of

·5· Florida studying microbiology and cell science on the premedical

·6· track.· Just recently I conducted a intrinsic sampling research

·7· study on gopher tortoise population densities in central

·8· Florida, which gained recognition by the Florida State Science

·9· and Engineering Fair and provided me with a college and

10· major-specific full ride scholarship as well as recognition by

11· many researchers and environmentalists at the University of

12· Florida that are interested in further investigation.· One of

13· the locations I analyzed was Medard Park, which is connected to

14· the parcel in question.

15· · · · · · Upon completion of my research, it is evident that the

16· population of these native keystone species is abundant in

17· comparison to other central Florida parks and locations.

18· Through subjecting my results to both a T test and confidence

19· interval, it was identified the difference in the population is

20· statistically significant.· With this being said, keystone

21· species are like the foundation to a house.· Without them, our

22· ecosystems would crumble.· The gopher tortoise shares it burrows

23· with over 350 other species, and, without them, there would be a

24· trophic cascade that would not only affect our native ecosystems

25· but the current state of our economy as well.
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·1· · · · · · Now, this applies simply because this land is

·2· currently zoned for agricultural use, however, the property

·3· began to be used as commercial use.· And I want to make it

·4· clear, it was mainly used as commercial property while the

·5· owners were aware it is zoned agricultural.· There has been

·6· documented proof of tractors and numerous other equipment being

·7· parked on top of these gopher tortoise burrows.· Now, these are

·8· federally protected species in which it is illegal to touch a

·9· gopher tortoise without a permit.· Now, think about the fact

10· these tractors are being parked on their burrows.

11· · · · · · Lastly, I would like to add there has already been a

12· previous hearing about the rezoning of this property, and I

13· believe it is disrespectful and a total waste of time and

14· resources to reopen an already recently addressed case.· As a

15· young person in this community trying to make the world better,

16· I would hope you would do the same.· Thank you very much for

17· your time, and I hope you have a blessed rest of your day.

18· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you very much for your

19· testimony.· I appreciate it.

20· · · · · · All right.· If you want to come forward.

21· · · · · · Was that the only person that you wanted to go?

22· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Yes.· She has to get to class.

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· No problem.

24· · · · · · Give us your name and address, please.

25· · · · · · MR. HOKE:· Hi.· My name is Jonathan Hoke.· I live at
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·1· 5513 Rain Frog Lane.· I'm the CEO of Fixer Upper LLC and Vice

·2· President of Rain Frog Ranch.· I stand before you here today as

·3· a homeowner in the community that is adjacent to the property in

·4· question.· I am here in awe that three years to the day, I am

·5· here again.· Last time I was here to voice my strong opposition,

·6· all agencies also opposed.· And, if you want, you can see the

·7· report.

·8· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· You can submit whatever documents you

·9· like into the record when you're finished.

10· · · · · · MR. HOKE:· All right.· So basically that report says

11· all agencies, three years ago when we did this with another

12· applicant, opposed this.· So what has changed, you ask.· Our

13· landscape has changed.· Our peace of mine has changed.

14· Everglades Equipment bought the property just after the prior

15· owner failed at getting the zoning changed.· However, this time,

16· the new owner, Everglades Equipment, just decided to operate

17· without proper zoning and illegally expanded, which has

18· encroached upon our land, decreased our peace, brought forth a

19· range of disturbances, and has the potential to cause

20· long-lasting harm to our community.

21· · · · · · Everglades Equipment, with its existing property, was

22· grandfathered in to our community, and we respected their

23· presence as a responsible neighbor for many years.· However,

24· their recent acquisition of adjacent agricultural and rural

25· lands and subsequent expansion has raised significant concerns.
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·1· The most concerning fact to me is that Everglades Equipment's

·2· utter and blatant disdain of the laws that this community relies

·3· on to ensure the safety and peace of mind of generations to

·4· come.

·5· · · · · · Immediately after purchasing the parcel in question,

·6· it was business as usual for John Deere.· They moved their

·7· 12-foot, 7000 volt fence to the edge of the new property, graded

·8· it, and started running a commercially intensive business on AR

·9· zoned land.· Environmental impact, abiding by the law, asking

10· the neighbors how they felt about it, nothing.

11· · · · · · What's most troubling for me is the precedent this

12· sets.· Our community has always valued responsible development

13· and adherence to zoning regulations.· Everglades Equipment's

14· illegal expansion calls into question the commitments we have

15· made for our land use to preserve our community.· One of the

16· most pressing issues we face is the construction of a towering

17· fence with 7000 volts of electricity running top to bottom,

18· further than I can reach.· I have a 4-year-old daughter that can

19· actually reach 26 inches from the fence.· Okay?

20· · · · · · This fencing not only mars the natural beauty of our

21· community but it also possesses a significant safety risk.· We

22· find it unacceptable having such an unsightly structure so close

23· to our homes and properties.· Moreover, the noise generated by

24· Everglades Equipment's expanded operations is now uncomfortably

25· close.· Constant beeping burglar alarms going off all weekend
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·1· and ground rumbling deliveries, not to mention the eyesore of

·2· old machinery and tires.· And I have pictures of all this.

·3· · · · · · What was once a peaceful and tranquil neighborhood in

·4· which we watched deer grow up on this parcel has now been

·5· disrupted by a constant rumble and commotion infringing upon our

·6· peace and quiet and impacting our wellbeing.

·7· · · · · · Another serious concern is the safety of our roads due

·8· to Everglades Equipment's activities.· Deliveries often

·9· haphazardly parked on the side of State Road 60 create dangerous

10· traffic situations for our community.· I've had to fix the

11· mailboxes twice this year already.· Employees drive the wrong

12· way on 60 to use the --

13· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· If you could just wrap it up.

14· · · · · · MR. HOKE:· Okay.· It is clear that Everglades

15· Equipment's expansion has crossed the line between responsible

16· growth and aggressive encroachment on our community's character

17· and safety.· I respectfully request that you take action to

18· mitigate these issues and ensure Everglades Equipment complies

19· with our current zoning regulations and protect our community

20· from further encroachment.· Our homes, our safety, and our

21· quality of life depend on it.· Your decision and the precedent

22· set by this Board and you will have a long-lasting impact on our

23· community for generations.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you for your testimony.· If you

25· could please sign in.· And when you do, you can submit your
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·1· written statements and photographs into the record.

·2· · · · · · Next, please.· Good evening.

·3· · · · · · MS. G. Genrich:· Hello.· My name is Gretchen Genrich

·4· Hoke.· I reside at 5513 Rain Frog Lane.· Ladies and gentlemen, I

·5· am the founder of Rain Frog Ranch, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit for

·6· equine therapy and a certified wildlife habitat.· I stand before

·7· you today because of a complaint that I made, not because of a

·8· rezoning request filed by Everglades Equipment Group.· I am here

·9· to discuss a crucial issue that affects not only our beautiful

10· state of Florida but also the future of our environmental

11· wellbeing and a remarkable, but critically endangered species,

12· the Florida panther.

13· · · · · · Okay.· So my family has lived here for over five

14· decades, and I have personally seen the panther on the land in

15· question.· And to see what has been allowed to the sensitive

16· agricultural land that surrounds this conservation area is

17· wrong.· Ladies and gentlemen, we are under attack.· I'm telling

18· you.· Now, Everglades Equipment Group, a company that bought

19· agricultural land and operated it as a commercial property on

20· its accord after Hillsborough County had previously agreed it

21· should remain agricultural land has significant consequences, as

22· it disrupts the delicate balance of the ecosystem affecting the

23· surrounding plants and animals.

24· · · · · · We must protect the sensitive ecosystems which are

25· crucial to the survival of our diverse wildlife.· As you should
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·1· know, agricultural land does play a crucial role in preserving

·2· our environment.· It provides habitat for wildlife, including

·3· the Florida panther.· And recent studies conducted by the

·4· University of Central Florida have confirmed the -- the presence

·5· of the Florida panthers in this vicinity of Medard Park, to

·6· which the parcel in question is adjacent, and the stormwater

·7· runoff from this parcel flows directly into the conservation

·8· area.· These findings underscore the critical importance of

·9· preserving this land for the continued survival of this

10· critically endangered species and many others.

11· · · · · · In conclusion, I urge you all to support policies and

12· initiatives that prioritize the preservation of Plant City's

13· base agricultural heartland and the protection of our critically

14· endangered Florida panther.· Hold Everglades Equipment for

15· accountable for their disrespect and bullying behavior.· Let us

16· be stewards of our land, ensuring a bright and sustainable

17· future for our beloved city and its remarkable wildlife.

18· · · · · · Thank you for your attention, and let us stand

19· together to safeguard Plant City's agricultural legacy, the

20· future of the Florida panther, and our precious state of

21· Florida.

22· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you for coming down.· Please

23· sign in.

24· · · · · · All right.· So we have three citizens left online to

25· testify.· I don't know if anyone had a preference to go first.
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·1· I have Mollie Genrich, Charles Genrich, and Margaret Thompson, I

·2· believe.

·3· · · · · · MS M. GENRICH:· I can go now.

·4· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Give us your name and

·5· address, please.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · MS. M. GENRICH:· My name is Mollie Genrich.· I live at

·7· 5521 Rain Frog Lane.· I come before you as a native resident who

·8· has proudly called this area home for over five decades.· I'm

·9· here to express my heartfelt opposition to the proposed rezoning

10· of our cherished agricultural land.

11· · · · · · I don't understand this because, almost three years

12· ago to the day, we're attending a land use hearing that denied

13· the request to rezone to CG; yet, Everglades Equipment decided

14· to go ahead.· In that time -- in the time that they have

15· acquired this land, our landscape, peace, and tranquility have

16· diminished.· For generations, our community has thrived on the

17· rural character and natural beauty that define this area.· We

18· have taken pride in our open spaces, our agricultural heritage,

19· and the tranquility that surrounds us.

20· · · · · · This land, where we have put down roots and built our

21· lives, is more than just a piece of real estate.· It is our

22· connection to our past, our present, and our future.· My

23· opposition to this resulting is not based on fear of change but

24· on the genuine concern for the wellbeing of our community and

25· preservation of what makes it special.· Here are some compelling
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·1· reasons why I think it is imperative that we deny this rezoning

·2· proposal and restore this precious land from its current state

·3· as a new and used car and tractor lot.

·4· · · · · · Preservation of rural character:· Our community's

·5· rural character is a source of pride for all of us.· Rezoning

·6· for intensive commercial use has dramatically altered the

·7· landscape and destroyed the very essence of what makes our area

·8· unique.· There's noise and light pollution.· The tranquillity we

·9· have enjoyed for decades has been disrupted by noise and light

10· pollution, adversely affecting our quality of life.

11· · · · · · Property values:· For all of us, our homes are not

12· just places to live but also investments for our future.  A

13· rezoning of this nature will have a negative impact on property

14· values, affecting our financial wellbeing.

15· · · · · · Transparency and community input:· The way this has

16· been done is not fair or transparent, and the voices of our

17· community members have not been heard or respected.

18· · · · · · In conclusion, I implore you esteemed members of the

19· Planning Board to consider the profound and lasting impact this

20· rezoning decision has -- has on our community.· I urge you to

21· take into account the concerns of those who have dedicated their

22· lives to this area and to work with us to find a more balanced

23· and sustainable approach that preserves our agricultural

24· heritage, our environment, and the quality of life we hold dear.

25· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you for your testimony.

·2· · · · · · Next, please.· Either Mr. Genrich or Ms. Thompson.

·3· Ms. Thompson, are you available?

·4· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Ms. Thompson, can you hear us?· You are

·5· muted.

·6· · · · · · MS. THOMPSON:· Sorry about that.· I thought Mr.

·7· Genrich was gonna go.

·8· · · · · · Good evening.· My name is Margaret Thompson.· I'm at

·9· 5507 Rain Frog Lane.· My husband and I have lived here for 24

10· years raising our family, and we moved here because we love the

11· country.· We oppose the rezoning of the Everglades property

12· because, well, we don't like how this affects the environment,

13· the habitat.· We don't like the bright lights, the late-night

14· deliveries.· These huge trucks and machinery, they -- they

15· rattle our windows.· Alarms go off at all hours.

16· · · · · · And that 7000 volt fence you've already heard about,

17· there's only six inches between that hot electric -- those hot

18· electric wires in the fence.· And we actually have five

19· grandchildren ranging in ages of two to ten years of age.  I

20· suppose if one of them wandered down the road and put their

21· little hands through the fence, it would be irreversible

22· consequences.

23· · · · · · So if you grant this rezoning, you're saying to anyone

24· that anyone could just buy property to expand their business,

25· whether it encroaches on protective land meant for the panther
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·1· or for the tortoise, various wildlife, agricultural use, and

·2· ignore the laws.· I don't know; just because they have a lot of

·3· money and they can get away with it.· In other words, the laws

·4· are for thee and not for me.· Or perhaps they weighed and

·5· measured the law and decided it was better to ask forgiveness

·6· rather than permission.

·7· · · · · · We're pro business, small business, entrepreneurism,

·8· but this once former small business has become a leviathan.· Did

·9· you know that Everglades boasts a whopping 18 locations on their

10· website?· They have governmental contracts with Hillsborough

11· County Sheriff's Association, the state of Florida, and

12· Sourcewell.· Is this considered a possible conflict of interest?

13· Cui bono.

14· · · · · · I honestly don't understand why we're doing this

15· today, because, as you're already heard, we've already gone

16· through this process.· We have laws on the books that forbid

17· this.· Not one person or agency considered the zoning change

18· advantageous to our community three years ago; yet, this goes

19· above and beyond the previous -- what the previous owner wanted.

20· Cui bono.

21· · · · · · It's a classic case of David versus Goliath.· And

22· who's -- who's considered here, beforehand, the impact on our

23· environment, neighbors, rule of law?· No one.· They just did it.

24· So this is forced upon us again.· It's a slap in the face three

25· years to the day.
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·1· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Ma'am, if you could wrap it up.

·2· That's past your time.· If you could just wrap up.

·3· · · · · · MS. THOMPSON:· Oh, sorry.

·4· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· That's okay.

·5· · · · · · MS. THOMPSON:· Well, the growth and expansion of the

·6· Everglades corporation by way of rezoning after the fact should

·7· never be at the expense of the peace and happiness of the

·8· environment, the habitat, or neighbor.· Thank you very much.

·9· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you for your testimony.  I

10· appreciate it.

11· · · · · · All right.· Last person is Mr. Genrich.

12· · · · · · MR. GENRICH:· Can you hear me?

13· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· I can.

14· · · · · · MR. GENRICH:· Oh, good.

15· · · · · · Good evening, everyone.· I think you've heard

16· everything that I was gonna talk about.· I do know that

17· Everglades Equipment moved onto agricultural designated

18· property.

19· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Sir, can you identify yourself for the

20· record and state your address?

21· · · · · · MR. GENRICH:· Oh.· I can do that.· My name is Charles

22· Genrich, 5521 Rain Frog Lane, Plant City, Florida.· And I'm

23· trying to look into this thing, but it's just not doing right

24· for me.

25· · · · · · But everything everyone else has said, I just don't
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·1· understand how Everglades could move into agricultural

·2· designated land, but I know how they did it.· They did it

·3· illegally with no concern for our neighborhood.· The property

·4· they went to -- is wanting to change is currently AR.· And,

·5· according to Hillsborough County's table of land uses for zoning

·6· districts, they are -- storage of equipment is prohibited.

·7· · · · · · So, yeah, we -- we have been putting up with the

·8· noise, the -- the lights, the alarms, the delivery trucks, the

·9· congestion at the end of our road, and all of that.· I just

10· think this property is AR, it should remain AR, and should be

11· used in accordance with AR.· And that's it.

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you, sir.· I appreciate your

13· testimony.

14· · · · · · All right.· That closes opposition portion of the

15· hearing.· We'll go back to Development Services.

16· · · · · · Ms. Heinrich, any comments?

17· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· The only thing I would add for you to

18· take into consideration, I looked and there was a previous

19· rezoning for this property.· It was under 20-0868, and it was

20· withdrawn by the applicant.

21· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· And that was for CG?

22· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· Correct.

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Yeah.

24· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· With no restrictions.

25· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· So it never went to the
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·1· Board; they withdrew it?

·2· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· It did not.

·3· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· I see.· Okay.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · And I forgot to ask Ms. Peddle while she was

·5· testifying.· There was a revised staff report for this case, and

·6· if you could just point me to the revisions.

·7· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· For this revised staff report, I

·8· believe the community plan area was corrected to NA.· It is not

·9· in a community plan area.

10· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· I see.· Okay.

11· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· I think that's it.

12· · · · · · MS. PEDDLE:· That's it.

13· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Thank you so much.

14· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· Yeah, Carolanne is saying yes.

15· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· All right.· Thank you very

16· much.· All right.· Perfect.· Thank you very much.

17· · · · · · All right.· We'll go back to the applicant, who has

18· five minutes for rebuttal.

19· · · · · · Ms. Stewart.

20· · · · · · MS. STEWART:· Yes.· Again, this -- this is Linda

21· Stewart, for the record.· We have not had a protected species

22· survey done on the property.· That is normally done during the

23· development permitting time.· And when a protected species

24· survey is completed, it will indicate whether or not there are

25· any turtles -- gopher tortoises on the property or if any
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·1· panthers happen to come across, if it's a known panther habitat

·2· pathway.· If there are any protected species, that would be

·3· taken care of through the Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission

·4· with appropriate permits that would be obtained at the time.

·5· · · · · · This property was a previous farm and nursery.· It was

·6· Berry Blue Farm [sic] that was located on the property.· This

·7· hasn't always been a vacant piece of property.· The County has

·8· asked for a 20-foot wide Type B buffer to be placed along Rain

·9· Frog Lane, and that is located within the staff report.· And the

10· applicant has no objection to this buffer being placed along

11· Rain Frog Lane.

12· · · · · · Retention areas are part of the development process,

13· and they will be engineering and designing a retention area for

14· all onsite stormwater retention.· They're required to maintain

15· and construct this, and they have to contain the first 20

16· percent of runoff on the site before anything is allowed to be

17· discharged.· And that is permitted through the Southwest Florida

18· Water Management District, and that will be also taken care of

19· during design.· Permitting, review, and engineering plans, and

20· calculations will be submitted to the County for review.

21· · · · · · I understand that there are some concerns, and I will

22· speak with the applicant about deliveries and alarms.· I am not

23· aware of any of these issues.· I have not had any correspondence

24· from anybody prior to this hearing.· And, with that, I hope I

25· have answered all of your questions.
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·1· · · · · · Oh, and we were not -- one last thing.· We were not

·2· the previous applicant that came in -- that withdrawn.· As you

·3· stated, they were not asking for any restrictions.· We have

·4· restricted ourselves to one specific use.· We've limited the

·5· hours of operation, and we've limited any buildings to be

·6· constructed to be, at a minimum, 140 feet from Rain Frog Lane.

·7· And with that, thank you.

·8· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Thank you for that

·9· clarification.· I appreciate it.

10· · · · · · With that, we'll close rezoning 23-0552 and go to the

11· next case.

12· · · · · · MS. HEINRICH:· Our next application is Agenda Item

13· C.3, Standard Rezoning 23-0571.· This is a request to rezone

14· from BPO and RSC-6 to RSC-9.· Isis Brown will present staff

15· findings after the applicant's presentation.· And you should

16· have a revised staff report which corrected the community plan

17· area and also reference to an access condition, a restriction.

18· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you for that.· I appreciate it.

19· · · · · · All right.· Is the applicant here?· Good evening.

20· · · · · · MS. LONDONO:· Good evening.· Ruth Londono, 1502 West

21· Busch Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33612.· Okay.· Let me -- okay.

22· The property -- we are rezoning today two properties.· One is

23· that on the southeast corner of North Himes Avenue and River

24· Cove Drive.· One of the properties is already zoned BPO, and the

25· second property is zoned RSC-6.· We are requesting to rezone
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· · · · · · · · · · · HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
· · · · · · · · · · ·BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
·

· · ------------------------------X
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · IN RE:· · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ZONE HEARING MASTER· · · · · ·)
· · HEARINGS· · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ------------------------------X
·

· · · · · · · · · · ·ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
· · · · · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS
·

· · · · · · · BEFORE:· · · · PAMELA JO HATLEY
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Land Use Hearing Master
·

· · · · · · · DATE:· · · · · Monday, August 21, 2023

· · · · · · · TIME:· · · · · Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Concluding at 8:43 p.m.
·

·

·

·

· · · · · · · · · LOCATION:· ·Hillsborough County BOCC
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 601 East Kennedy Boulevard
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Tampa, Florida 33601

·

·

·

· · Reported by:
· · Diane DeMarsh, AAERT No. 1654
·

·
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·1· hearing.

·2· · · · · · Item A.14, Major Mod 23-0518.· This application is out

·3· of order to be heard and is being continued to the

·4· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

·5· · · · · · Item A.15, PD 23-0519.· This application is out of

·6· order to be heard and is being continued to the

·7· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

·8· · · · · · Item A.16, Major Mod 23-0520.· This application is out

·9· of order to be heard and is being continued to the

10· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

11· · · · · · Item A.17, PD 23-0522.· This application is out of

12· order to be heard and is being continued to the

13· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

14· · · · · · Item A.18, Standard Rezoning 23-0552.· This

15· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

16· to the September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

17· · · · · · Item A.19, Standard Rezoning 23-0573.· This

18· application is being continued by Staff to the

19· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

20· · · · · · Item A.20, Major Mod 23-0578.· This application is out

21· of order to be heard and is being continued to the

22· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

23· · · · · · Item A.21, Standard Rezoning 23-0588.· This

24· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

25· to the September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.
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· · · · · · · · · · · HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
· · · · · · · · · · ·BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
·

· · ------------------------------X
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · IN RE:· · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ZONE HEARING MASTER· · · · · ·)
· · HEARINGS· · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ------------------------------X
·
· · · · · · · · · · ·ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
· · · · · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS

·

· · · · · · · BEFORE:· · · · PAMELA JO HATLEY
· · · · · · · · ·  · ·Land Use Hearing Master
·

· · · · · · · DATE:·

· · · · · · · TIME:·
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·

  · ·

  · · Monday, July 24, 
2023

  · · Commencing at 6:00 
p.m.

Concluding at 9:  p.
·

·

·

·

· · · · · · · Reported via Cisco Webex Videoconference by:
· · · · · · · · · Samantha Kozlowski, Digital Reporter
·

·

·

·

·

·

·
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·1· is being continued by the applicant to the September 18, 2023

·2· ZHM hearing.

·3· · · · · · Item A.19, Standard Rezoning 23-0552.· This

·4· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

·5· to the August 21, 2023 ZHM hearing.

·6· · · · · · Item A.20, Standard Rezoning 23-0571.· This

·7· application is being continued by the applicant to the

·8· September 18, 2023 ZHM hearing.

·9· · · · · · Item A.21, Standard Rezoning 23-0573.· This

10· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

11· to the August 21, 2023 ZHM hearing.

12· · · · · · And that concludes the continues.

13· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Thank you very much.

14· · · · · · All right.· So the meeting procedures tonight, first

15· of all -- again, if you have any items that our noisemakers,

16· please turn those off or silence those at this time.

17· · · · · · The agenda tonight consists of items that require a

18· public hearing by a hearing master before going to the Board of

19· County Commissioners for a final decision.· I will conduct a

20· hearing on each item today and will submit a written

21· recommendation.· My written recommendation will be filed with

22· the clerk of the Board within 15 working days after the

23· conclusion of today's public hearings.

24· · · · · · The Board of County Commissioners will consider the

25· record of today's public hearing and my recommendation and will

ZHM Hearing ---
July 24, 2023
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HEARING TYPE: ZHM , PHM, VRH, LUHO      DATE:  September 18, 2023 

HEARING MASTER:  Susan Finch      PAGE:  1 OF 1 

F:\Groups\WPODOCS\Zoning\Hearing Forms\Hearing – Exhibit List 

APPLICATION # SUBMITTED BY EXHIBITS SUBMITTED HRG. MASTER 
YES OR NO 

RZ 23-0203 Susan Swift 1. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0082 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

RZ 23-0082 Todd Pressman 2. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0552 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

RZ 23-0552 Jonathan Hoke 2. Opposition Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0552 Gretchen Hoke 3. Opposition Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0571 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

RZ 23-0571 Ruth Londono 2. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0573 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

RZ 23-0573 Isabelle Albert 2. Applicant Presentation Packet Yes (Copy) 

RZ 23-0640 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

RZ 23-0792 Aleathea Hoskins 1. Opposition Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0792 Tu Mai 2. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0846 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

RZ 23-0846 Kami Corbett 2. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

RZ 23-0059 Mark Bentley 1. Applicant Presentation Packet Yes (Copy) 

RZ 23-0109 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

 23-0414 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report- Email No 

 23-0414 Kevin Reali 2. Applicant Presentation Packet No 

 23-0578 Michelle Heinrich 1. Revised Staff Report – Email No 

 23-0578 Alexandra Schaler 2. Applicant Presentation Packet No 
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SEPTEMBER 18, 2023 – ZONING HEARING MASTER 
 
 

The Zoning Hearing Master (ZHM), Hillsborough County, Florida, met in Regular 
Meeting, scheduled for Monday, September 18, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., in the 
Boardroom, Frederick B. Karl County Center, Tampa, Florida, and held 
virtually. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., led in the 
pledge of allegiance to the flag, and introduced Development Services (DS). 

A. WITHDRAWALS AND CONTINUANCES 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, introduced staff, and reviewed 
changes/withdrawals/continuances. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, overview of ZHM process. 

Mary Dorman, Senior Assistant County Attorney, overview of oral 
argument/ZHM process. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, Oath. 

B. REMANDS 

B.1. RZ 23-0203 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0203. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0203. 

C. REZONING STANDARD (RZ-STD): 

C.1. RZ 23-0082 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0082. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0082. 
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C.2. RZ 23-0552 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0552. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0552. 

C.3. RZ 23-0571 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0571. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0571. 

C.4. RZ 23-0573 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0573. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0573. 

C.5. RZ 23-0640 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0640. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0640. 

C.6. RZ 23-0792 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0792. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0792. 
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C.7. RZ 23-00846 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0846. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0846. 

D. REZONING-PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (RZ-PD) & MAJOR MODIFICATION (MM): 

D.1. RZ 23-0059 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0059. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0059. 

D.2. RZ 23-0109 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0109. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 23-0109. 

D.3. RZ 23-0369 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called RZ 23-0369. 

Testimony presented. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, continued RZ 23-0369 to November 13, 2023, ZHM. 

D.4. MM 23-0414 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called MM 23-0414. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed MM 23-0414. 
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D.5. MM 23-0578 

Michelle Heinrich, DS, called MM 23-0578. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed MM 23-0578. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Susan Finch, ZHM, adjourned meeting at 10:54 p.m. 



Rezoning Application: RZ-STD 23-0552
Zoning Hearing Master Date: September 18, 2023

BOCC Land Use Meeting Date: November 07, 2023
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Created 8-17-21

Development Services Department

1.0 APPLICATION SUMMARY

Applicant: Mike Schlechter

FLU Category: R-1 

Service Area: Rural

Site Acreage: 5.4 +/- 

Community 
Plan Area: 
Overlay: None

Introduction Summary:
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from the existing AR (Agricultural Rural) district to the proposed CI
(Commercial, Intensive) district with restrictions to the use, setbacks, and hours of operation to accommodate 
additional inventory and storage of equipment. The property is located on the corner of Rain Frog Land and W state 
Road 60.

Zoning: Existing Proposed
District(s) AR CI-R

Typical General Use(s) Agricultural Commercial, Intensive 

Acreage 5.41 5.41 

Density/Intensity 1 DU per 5 GA/ FAR NA DU per GA: NA/ FAR 0.30

Mathematical Maximum* 1 DU per GA/ GFA: NA DU: NA / GFA: 70,697.88
*number represents a pre-development approximation 

Development Standards: Existing Proposed
District(s) AR CI-R
Lot Size / Lot Width 217,000 SqFt /150’ 20,000 SqFt / 100’ 

Setbacks/Buffering and 
Screening

50’ Front
50’ Rear
25’ Sides

30’ Front
10’ & 11’ Rear
10’ & 11’ Sides

Height 50’ 50’ 

Additional Information:

PD Variation(s) NA

Waiver(s) to the Land Development Code NA

Planning Commission Recommendation:
Consistent

Development Services Recommendation:
Approvable with restrictions 
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA 

2.1 Vicinity Map 

Context of Surrounding Area: 

The subject parcel is separated from the North by W State Road 60 and to the West by Rain Frog Lane. The 
properties surrounding the parcel from the North, West, and South are all under residential uses. The property to 
the East which is owned by the applicant of the subject parcel is under the use of sales, rental and service of new or 
used farm, garden and turf equipment.  
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  

2.2 Future Land Use Map 

 

 

Subject Site Future Land Use Category: R-1 

Maximum Density/F.A.R.: 1 per 5 acres / 0.25 

Typical Uses: 

Farms, ranches, residual uses, rural scale neighborhood commercial uses, 
offices, and multi-purpose projects. Commercial, office, and multi-purpose 
uses shall meet locational criteria for specific land use projects. 
 
Agricultural uses may be permitted pursuant to policies in the agricultural 
objective areas of the Future Land Use Element. 
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.3 Immediate Area Map

Adjacent Zonings and Uses

Location: Zoning:

Maximum 
Density/F.A.R. 

Permitted by Zoning 
District:

Allowable Use: Existing Use:

North AS-1 1/NA Agriculture, Single Family SINGLE FAMILY R

South AR 1/NA Agriculture, Single Family SINGLE FAMILY R, 8700 
STATE

East CI, AR NA/0.30, 1/NA
Accessory Retail, 

Automotive Supply Store, 
Agriculture, Single Family

AUTO SALES C, VACANT 
RESIDENTIAL 

West AR 1/NA Agriculture, Single Family SINGLE FAMILY R, MH
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  
2.4 Proposed Site Plan (partial provided below for size and orientation purposes. See Section 8.0 for full site plan)  

N/A 



APPLICATION NUMBER: RZ-STD 23-0552 
ZHM HEARING DATE: September 18, 2023 
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: November 07, 2023 Case Reviewer: Carolanne Peddle 

Page 6 of 12



APPLICATION NUMBER: RZ-STD 23-0552 
ZHM HEARING DATE: September 18, 2023 
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: November 07, 2023 Case Reviewer: Carolanne Peddle 

Page 7 of 12

4.0 ADDITIONAL SITE INFORMATION & AGENCY COMMENTS SUMMARY 

INFORMATION/REVIEWING AGENCY 

Environmental: Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 

Environmental Protection Commission Yes
No

Yes
No

Yes
No

Natural Resources Yes
No

Yes
No

Yes
No

Conservation & Environ. Lands Mgmt. Yes
No

Yes
No

Yes
No

Check if Applicable: 
Wetlands/Other Surface Waters
Use of Environmentally Sensitive Land

Credit
Wellhead Protection Area
Surface Water Resource Protection Area

Potable Water Wellfield Protection Area
Significant Wildlife Habitat
Coastal High Hazard Area
Urban/Suburban/Rural Scenic Corridor
Adjacent to ELAPP property
Other _________________________

Public Facilities: Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Transportation 

Design Exc./Adm. Variance Requested 
Off-site Improvements Provided

Yes
No

Yes
No

Service Area/ Water & Wastewater 
Urban       City of Tampa
Rural        City of Temple Terrace 

Yes
No

Yes
No

Yes
No

Hillsborough County School Board  
Adequate     K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A
Inadequate  K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A

Yes
No

Yes
No

Yes
No

NA 

Impact/Mobility Fees 

Comprehensive Plan:  Comments 
Received Findings Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Planning Commission  

Meets Locational Criteria       N/A
Locational Criteria Waiver Requested

Consistent

Minimum Density Met            N/A
Density Bonus Requested

Inconsistent

Yes
No

Inconsistent
Consistent

Yes
No

Yes
No

Yes
No
Yes
No
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5.0 IMPLEMENTATION RECOMMENDATIONS   
5.1 Compatibility  
The immediate adjacent properties are zoned AR to the south, west, east, and AS -1 to the north separated by W State 
Road 60. From the west the parcel is separated from residential parcels by Rain Frog Road. As the road is less than 50 
feet in width a required 20-foot buffer with type B screening is required in accordance with LDC Sec. 6.06.06. The 
northern most adjacent parcel to the east of the subject parcel is zoned CI, owned by the applicant with the use of 
sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf equipment. Furthermore, the site is bordered by a 
mixture of residential uses. To mitigate compatibility issues with the residential properties the applicant has proposed 
restrictions on the use, setbacks, and hours of operation. Additionally, the subject site is surrounded by R – 1, AR, and 
OC-20 Future Land Use (FLU) categories which permits residential, community & neighborhood commercial, office, 
farms, ranches, and multi-purpose uses. 

5.2 Recommendation      
Based on the above considerations and proposed restrictions, staff finds the proposed CI zoning district is compatible 
with the existing zoning districts and development pattern in the area. Therefore, staff finds the request Approvable. 
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6.0 PROPOSED RESTRICTIONS  
1. Hours of operation for the subject parcel will be limited to: Monday thru Friday from 8 am to 5 pm and

Saturday from 8 am to 12 pm.  The business will be closed on Sundays
2. The proposed building will be placed along the eastern side of the property with a minimum of 140-foot

distance from the residential properties west of Rain Frog Lane.
3. Use shall be restricted to “sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf equipment”

Zoning Administrator Sign Off:  

J. Brian Grady
Fri Sep  8 2023 08:17:16

SITE, SUBDIVISION AND BUILDING CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
& BUILDING REVIEW AND APPROVAL.  
Approval of this re-zoning petition by Hil lsborough County does not constitute a guarantee that the project will receive 
approvals/permits necessary for site development as proposed will be issued, nor does it imply that other required permits needed 
for site development or building construction are being waived or otherwise approved.  The project will be required to comply 
with the Site Development Plan Review approval process in addition to obtain all necessary building permits for on-site structures.  
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7.0 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND/OR GRAPHICS 

N/A 
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8.0 PROPOSED SITE PLAN (FULL) 

N/A
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9.0 FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT (see following pages) 



AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO: ZONING TECHNICIAN, Development Services Department DATE: 9/07/2023 
 

REVIEWER: Richard Perez, AICP AGENCY/DEPT: Transportation 

PLANNING AREA/SECTOR:  EAST RURAL PETITION NO: RZ 23-0552 
 

 

 

X  This agency has no objection. 
 
  This agency objects for the reasons set forth below. 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the +/- 4.45-acre subject parcel from Agricultural Rural (AR) to Commercial 
Intensive (CI) with the use restricted to “sales, rental and service of new or used farm, garden and turf 
equipment”.  The applicant is proposing additional restrictions on hours of operation and building placement. The 
future land use designation is Residential 1 (R-1).  
 
Since the proposed applicant seeks a Euclidean zoning district, no transportation analysis is required to process 
this request per the development review procedures manual. 
 
 
SITE ACCESS  
 
Generally, for projects with a Euclidean zoning designation, a project’s potential transportation impacts, site access 
requirements, substandard road issues, site layout and design, other issues related to project access, and compliance 
with other applicable Hillsborough County Comprehensive Plan, Hillsborough County Land Development Code 
(LDC) and Hillsborough County Transportation Technical Manual (TTM) requirements are evaluated at the time 
of plat/site/construction plan review.  Given the limited information available as is typical of all Euclidean zoned 
properties and/or non-regulatory nature of any conceptual plans provided, Transportation Review Section staff did 
review the proposed rezoning to determine (to the best of our ability) whether the zoning is generally consistent 
with applicable policies of the Hillsborough County Comprehensive Plan, LDC and TTM (e.g. to ensure that the 
proposed rezoning would not result in a violation of the requirement whereby access to commercial properties 
cannot be taken through residentially or agriculturally zoned properties), and/or whether, in staff’s opinion, some 
reasonable level of development under the proposed zoning designation could be supported based on current access 
management standards (e.g. to ensure that a project was not seeking an intensification of a parcel which cannot 
meet minimum access spacing requirements).   
 
Transportation Section staff did not identify any concerns that would require a more detailed staff report be filed.  
Staff notes that, regardless of this review, the developer/property owner will be required to comply will all 
Comprehensive Plan, LDC, TTM and other applicable rules and regulations at the time of plat/site/construction 
plan review.  As such, staff has no objection to this request. 
 
Staff notes that any plans or graphics presented as a part of a Euclidean zoning case is non-binding and will have 
no regulatory value at the time of plat/site/construction plan review. 
 
 
 
 

  This agency has no comments. 



 
 
ROADWAY LEVEL OF SERVICE (LOS) INFORMATION 
 
Level of Service (LOS) information is reported below. 
 

FDOT Generalized Level of Service 

Roadway From To LOS 
Standard 

Peak Hr 
Directional LOS  

SR 60 TURKEY 
CREEK RD  CR 39 D C 

Source: 2020 Hillsborough County Level of Service (LOS) Report 

 



Transportation Comment Sheet 

3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9 OF STAFF REPORT) 
Adjoining Roadways (check if applicable) 
Road Name Classification Current Conditions Select Future Improvements 

SR 60 FDOT Principal 
Arterial - Rural 

4 Lanes 
Substandard Road
Sufficient ROW Width

Corridor Preservation Plan
Site Access Improvements
Substandard Road Improvements
Other

Project Trip Generation  Not applicable for this request 
Average Annual Daily Trips A.M. Peak Hour Trips P.M. Peak Hour Trips

Existing 9 1 1 
Proposed 420 42 42 
Difference (+/-) +411 +41 +41
*Trips reported are based on net new external trips unless otherwise noted.

Connectivity and Cross Access  Not applicable for this request 

Project Boundary Primary Access Additional 
Connectivity/Access Cross Access Finding 

North None None Meets LDC 
South None None Meets LDC 
East None None Meets LDC 
West None None Meets LDC 
Notes: 

Design Exception/Administrative Variance   Not applicable for this request 
Road Name/Nature of Request Type Finding 
N/A Choose an item. Choose an item. 

Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 

4.0 Additional Site Information & Agency Comments Summary 

Transportation Objections Conditions 
Requested 

Additional 
Information/Comments 

Design Exception/Adm. Variance Requested
Off-Site Improvements Provided

Yes  N/A
No

Yes
No See report. 
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NONE 
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